

5

Yellow notebook

①

14th Century

1662 - 1663. 1664.

~~4/5~~

1662
D.A.C. (cont) SA. 5914

Copy Memorandum for Le Maire [Dutch Resident] to
King Fredk III of Denmark Norway on 22
"Ingeleish Den ¹⁸/₈ Jan. 1662" [Form enc: to
Le Maiores letter to H. 928 Jan 1662 [N.B. 6 p 92]

"Copie"

besluchte Post-middege King,

The undersigned Resident of this Ho. Mo. de los S. S. of the
U. N. finds himself charged, in all conbrighly to make
the following report on the imfounded complaints of Y. Maj's
African visitors,

The of a visitors have complained to Y. Maj. of great ^{violence} ~~great~~
and wrong ^{done to} ~~completely~~ which had been ^{done to} ~~completely~~ them by this Ho. Mo's
W.C. (to the say), ^{whereupon} ~~whereupon~~ ^{to send} ~~to send~~ ^{Your letter} ~~to send~~
has ~~to the~~ ^{to send} ~~to send~~ ^{Your letter} ~~to send~~
to this Ho. Mo. of 24 Aug last year. to inform them of it

The undersigned Resident can in truth say & ^{undertakes} ~~undertakes~~
of him to let Y. Maj see (if you please ^{if you please} ~~if you please~~) with ^{verifying} ~~verifying~~
documents that this Ho. Mo's W.C. has ^{abundant} ~~abundant~~
reasons to complain to Y. Maj of ^{open} ~~open~~ ^{open} ~~open~~ ^{open} ~~open~~
violence & ^{violence} ~~violence~~ done within in these Quarters, by

about Cabo das Palmas without anchors, mastless & [DAC]
 & ^{manned by} crew with many sick, & the same, is alle minnelijcklyc
 without touching for cargo or anything, ^{to}gesteopt (also let
 anders i zee hadde ^{verkeerd} moeten vergaen) tot voor de kiste
del Mina (residentie placet of the WC) which is about 100
 mijlen; but finding that the ship galioot was entirely
 manned ^{by} with master landers, not one of Y Hoij's subjects,
 the Director Caspar van Heussen has been obliged, by
 virtue of his office, to enquire where the ship galioot
 came from, who the owners & ^{freighters} ~~carriers~~ were, also where
 its cargo was taken ~~to~~ & had hired its crew, & sende
 door vass ondersoek seker fondament te hebben
 dat Y Hoij's name & gelief was ^{wrongfully made use of} ~~onrecht gebruycht~~,
 the said van Heussen fide opd reason has proceeded
 to seije de letters ops leing therein, & ^{from these} ~~de~~ als
 uit de depositions of all the crew, soe veel besonden dat
 de ship galioot (at Amsterdam) ^{was} equipped, laden, &
 the crew engaged ~~there~~ & money given into their hands &
 dat van ^{by} Jan Vlasblom, Gerrit Tets, Jan Swaen,
 & Hendrick Carloff, all being ^{burghers} ~~burghers~~ & inhabitants
 of Amsterdam & subjects of their Ho Mo, welke sulx
 te doen, op penen van ^{banishment} ~~banissement~~ & confiscation
 of all their goods, ^{strictly} ~~verbooden~~ by de Conings Charter
 other ~~other~~ placaten of de years 1624, 1632, & 1654, dual
 Placaden.

[illegible]

~~selfde. werik sent for~~ Crevcaur lot Acta ^{also} ~~at~~

[illegible]

[Ble]

met de Directie van den H. W. C.
 te ^{tracht} trachten & voors plaatse Cabo Corso
 in haar handen te stellen, gelyk ook
 daarop gescheit is een ideale over-
 handeling ^{en} overlevering van voors plaatse,
 tusschen de Directie of den H. W. C. conquest
 Caspar van Kaussen & Samuel Smith afge-
 (geft) ^{afgeft} gelyk de Resident, en Engages to show
 of Maatschap (of amsied)) welke veruolende
 plaatse, gelyk hiervoren gezegt is, tegen alle
 vriendschap & alliancie van de naturellen
 & of Maatschap gehinvalende subjecten, tegen alle
 reden hem wederom of geuuen is, inde
^{cunnen} ~~cunnen~~ de best beuuen hebben van den
 H. W. C. van J. Maats' gewoonlyke
 goeder trouw heyt niet anders verwachten,
 als dat of Maats de voorgevoelde exorbitanten
 def desapprobierende, sal doen straffen de gene
 welke een voors feytelyk leuen schuldig syn.

Ook soo dagen meer hoogevalte
 Directies of de Nederlandsche W. C. tot serve
 of den H. W. C. subjecten in alle stillighyft
 haar getransporteert hebben op een seker
 Oort ^{plece} in Africa Sierra Lionia genaemt

Verhally, on wity a labell dille (to two)

on wher he yansquid pendent beg clayed to
men on thate to ^{the} ~~the~~ .. well also capet be ~~the~~ ^{the} from 1/2 May 17
a speedy redres of all the dorected disorders &
specially in the plear of such solitary remedy that
of May's commissions are used by usome at his own
subjects rust sold shandred over to paigners of this
thorpwin or to subjects of the ~~the~~ who
voorstaande stytelijkheden om haer gewins
wille int werk stellen.

kenmaly dat of May's well be pleased to order
his good Commaude Joost Cramer to desist
him all stytelykheden & ^{incitigien} ~~oplossing~~ of the notuellen
of the Quarters, directly or indirectly, against
the ~~the~~ subjects Ende vooral te
restitueren de wel ^{vielen} ~~geweel~~ door hem, als
zijn te doen, ingenomene, gelyck ook de
inlanfcl notuany to all protestatie, geweste
haer thesuo ploss of its ~~lyst~~ with all costs
thawopes, deintholve as natie, rargedcan & geliden

With a strict Verbod dat was of of May's
subjects ^{comen} ~~weten~~ te styven or te protegeren den ~~the~~
two disorderly subjects in their bad actions,
in whatever manner they be, that they refrain

[AAC]

will expect
of May 15
Heads
or an
amputation
for the

from taking trafficking of the places belonging
to him the most subject ^{inhabitants} ~~Wt.~~ upon all which
he President ^{has} ~~has~~ upon complete removal
of such dangerous and & meantime
remains.

Remains of most valuable thing

Ingenient de 18 Jan 1662. 0

Y. his / per himselfe present
J. de laire

Examine

[Elmore]

Extrait from ^{orig} letter by President J. de laire to St. Euse
dated "Elmore 4 Feb 1662 still more"

"d 4. 12. 11 Feb 1662"

Harry Stungers House.

with House.

The ship Frederick of the gentlemen African
Co being before Glastonbury ready to sail
in order to go to Africa. has put to sea & I
am told that the same will ^{run into} ~~can happen~~ in
England in order here to ^{fetch} ~~take~~ a English
^{Sea passport} free brief which one has thought here will
be was respected & then ~~to the~~ ^{one} ~~from~~ ^{from}

(X) this Case. I have verbally & also in writing [DAC.]
 informed the King that the said ship was equipped
 in Amsterdam & ~~other~~ contrary to the Charter,
 by merchants of the said town City, showed the
 documents, & verification ^{of the water} ~~of the water~~, to the ^{high} great
 Chancellor left them in his hands & and over such
 that it would well happen ^{if His Majesty} ~~indeed~~ ^{deeds not make the Commission, grant them, unless} ~~the Verleende Commissie~~ ^{de Verleende Commissie} ~~hoar niet~~ ~~it~~ ~~can~~
~~enbrechte~~ it enbrecht unexpected. that the said
 ship coming up the coast of Guinea ^{would meet with} ~~en goede~~
^{a bad reception} ~~rescortie~~ soude ont moeten; which words I have
 reported afterwards somewhat more clearly reported
 to the ^{high} great Chancellor, so that sufficient ^{information} ~~keuning~~
 has been ^{given} ~~gegeven~~ of what ^{if} ~~will~~ happen to them
 so ^{if they come with} ~~de~~ ~~met~~ ~~voors~~ ~~schip~~ ~~op~~ ~~de~~ ~~coast~~ ~~van~~ ~~Guinea~~
^{as they} ~~comen~~ ~~in~~ ~~den~~ ~~hollands~~ ~~zee~~ ~~gebied~~, ~~gelyck~~ ~~hoar~~
^{Sea passage} ~~staten~~ ~~dat~~ ~~den~~ ~~intention~~ ~~is~~ ~~to~~ ~~give~~ ~~trade~~
~~gebrief~~ ~~verbrengt~~. ~~voornemen~~ ~~hoar~~ ~~handel~~ ~~te~~
~~druyen~~. ~~Wat~~ ~~whil~~ ~~de~~ ~~de~~

[AC]. Orig for hon President J de Meuse to St Gen.
 "d' Els: 11 Feb 1662 sub wars"
 [89. 5914].

"d 11. 2. 18 Feb 1662"

Hong Maogunde Heeren.

Utrecht Heeren / Since my last of the 14th inst.
 was sent to me from Copenhagen, on behalf of the King,
 after to my ingediende memorie wegen the
^{occurrences} voorgewallene op de custe Guinea, of which the
 ingediende copy is ^{implied} translation. Seeing that
 the King had been pleased to place the afo
 memorandum in the hands of the Pluikstede
Gouverneur directors [sic] for report, I have ^{could not omit} ~~not been able~~
 to fluessen - ⁱⁿ ~~for~~ defense of you the unige
Company's ^{rights} querechticheit - to ^{hand over} overgeven with so King
 this accompanying second memorandum and
 desirably to request ^a copy of their reply, ^{on having seen it} ~~on~~ betreffende
gezien betreffende voors directeurs quade stukken
den Coninck beter voor oogen te amnen
stellen. By this opportunity I have again made
 the Majesty acquainted with the ^{character} qualiteit of
 the ship Frederick, how the same was equipped.

by 1/2 of the subjects of Amsterdam ^{who} find only [D.A.C.]
use employ ~~their~~ ^{use} this way by commission
as a ^{draft} ~~document~~ ^{under which to carry out} to see whether ^{in the} ~~the~~ ^{topping} ~~has~~ ^{been} ~~conveyed~~
is security referring ^{for his information, of what} ~~to the~~ ^{for} ~~advised~~ ^{part} ~~part~~
had referred to the relative documents handed to the State Chancellor
gefaßende of the documents des künftigen des rijkx
Cancellier overgegeven. . . .

Emes: to share love

2/ Rendert & Waire Co King, Leith. (copy)

The undersigned Resident of the Town & SS of Am.
has read & adopts resolution of 19th Jan'y last,
in ref. to the Residents Union as what has been
suggested on the C of Africa & the names of J. H. [unclear]
Major the [unclear] ^{their} [unclear] W.C. & Lees [unclear]

[ARC]

that I may have been pleased to send ^{me of} the
 of a memo to I May's African Danish brother
 to give their after details, which reply the
 so resident respectfully requests may be
 communicated to him in order to report first
 to I May (so pleasing) and concerning
 I May's denial that he, resident, should seek
 out to ^{object} be taken by him for his complete
 security that the ship Frederick might, without
 an understanding from the Inst W.C., come
 to the C of I office it was done, the
 undersigned resident has always been
 disposed & is still entirely disposed
 to do all good office by the W.C.
 to the end; but can find no reason
 of I May's met affairs nor action of the
 I May's African Coy has the of the residents
 with only two respective treaties entered
 into but also the two special resolutions
 of their W.C. done of the 16 November
 1861 of the 8th November of last year
 to the to the end, if only the so African
 Coy is sending their ships directly
 out of I May's harbors to the quarter

but he is of
 opinion that
 for May's
 African Co
 can have the
 security under
 the treaties
 already made
 & also the
 special
 resolutions
 of their W.C.
 of 16 Nov & 8
 Dec. only of
 that Co. sends
 its ships
 directly out
 of I May's
 ports to those
 regions, & that
 those ships
 are equipped
 in I May's
 Kingdome &
 by subjects
 of your Crown
 & that they
 refrain from
 trading at
 places
 belonging to
 their W.C.
 W.C.

the same are equipped & ~~of May's~~ ~~May's~~ Kingdon
& subjects of his respective Powers, as also refrain from
treating as places belonging to their His M^{ty}
B^{ty} & ~~which being done~~ ^{upon this being done} be Resident, can fully
assure of May's that such equipped ships will only
shall not be touched & the best W.C. be a the
Contract, a time of need in their country, especially
~~land~~ ^{land} shall be offered as such is ~~belonging~~ ^{proper}
between subjects of two allied States, but concerning
the ship ~~Resident~~ ^{Resident} be Resident can fully prove,
by evidence left in the hands of May's next Cancellation,
that the said ship was equipped at ~~Prus~~ ^{Prus};
^{where} when it obtained its crew & cargo, & that this was done
by inhabitants of their His M^{ty}, ^{some} ~~these~~ ^{these} ~~Hamburg~~
merchants, who only cover themselves with May's
Commission & ~~would~~ ^{would} ~~like~~ ^{like} ~~to~~ ^{to} ~~make~~ ^{make} ~~the~~ ^{the} ~~name~~ ^{name}
of the D.C. ~~to~~ ^{to} ~~send~~ ^{send} ~~the~~ ^{the} ~~ship~~ ^{ship} ~~to~~ ^{to} ~~the~~ ^{the} ~~Guinea~~ ^{Guinea}
Coast, ^{in order there to strengthen} ~~the~~ ^{the} ~~May's~~ ^{May's} ~~so called~~ ^{so called}
i.e. ~~hostilities~~ ^{hostilities} ~~subjects~~ ^{subjects}
i.e. ~~hostilities~~ ^{hostilities} ~~subjects~~ ^{subjects} ~~their~~ ^{their} ~~His M^{ty}~~ ^{His M^{ty}}
(May's so (out of all allies) ~~in~~ ⁱⁿ ~~the~~ ^{the} ~~Guinea~~ ^{Guinea} ~~Coast~~ ^{Coast} ~~to~~ ^{to} ~~do~~ ^{do}
such hostile actions: so that the Resident expects
that May's will be pleased to consider ~~the~~ ^{what is alleged} ~~alleged~~ ^{alleged},
& in order to avoid ~~such~~ ^{such} ~~disturbances~~ ^{disturbances}, ~~to~~ ^{to} ~~make~~ ^{make} ~~the~~ ^{the} ~~said~~ ^{said} ~~ship~~ ^{ship} ~~must~~ ^{must} ~~remain~~ ^{remain} ~~here~~ ^{here} ~~so long~~ ^{so long}

Pendant le voyage de St. Jean

"Copenh: le $\frac{4}{14}$ Mars 1662"

[89. 59, 4]

[58c.]

bot 14
rec 21

marly 1662.

Ho dno Kuen

hove of

My Kuen. / Kuenitz of Holms will be pleased to
see the reply of the ^{so called} general Danish Mr. Proches
with the documents ^{relating thereto} deartoe Spectende together with
my reply ^{Among them} order desire ^{these} advice of Holms ^{will please}
over seen. ^{these} of a directors' letter to the Command
Jost Cramer in Africa produced under letter C,
in which ^{they} not only ^{was} bitter expressions against
the ^{Netherlands} ~~land~~ of Holms. but also dealing with that
they were sent by the ship Pedroick for San
Christoph Lay (Holms' ^{enemy} ~~enemy~~) ^{where} it is believed that
part is taken ^{of} ^{by this ship} ^{is being} ^{secretly} ^{made} ^{so many} ^{urgent} ^{requests} ^{for} ^{instantiation}
on this voyage ^{by this ship} ^{is being} ^{secretly} ^{made} ^{so many} ^{urgent} ^{requests} ^{for} ^{instantiation}
in these days such ^{is being} ^{secretly} ^{made} ^{so many} ^{urgent} ^{requests} ^{for} ^{instantiation}
ammunition of war ^{is being} ^{secretly} ^{made} ^{so many} ^{urgent} ^{requests} ^{for} ^{instantiation}
that ^{is why the} ^{make} ^{so many} ^{urgent} ^{requests} ^{for} ^{instantiation}
from the President Carrius by the two ^{other} ^{ships} ^{to} ^{the} ^{Coast} ^{of} ^{Guinea}
that that ship ^{might} ^{come} ^{to} ^{the} ^{Coast} ^{of} ^{Guinea}
does ^{the} ^{Coast} ^{of} ^{Guinea} ^{is} ⁱⁿ ^{the} ^{Coast} ^{of} ^{Guinea}
being known ^{what} ^{it} ^{may} ^{contain}
that one should ^{not} ^{be} ⁱⁿ ^{the} ^{Coast} ^{of} ^{Guinea}
could come of the cost of Guinea ~~now~~

[DAC]. Allen hoe Rendint I le manie totke stagen
 "Els. de 25 Maert 1662" [89 5914]
 Koolman Keur

"d 25 Maert

"d 1^{ste} April 1662.

My Heeren. / Ick hebbe uwer replique u Hoort
 met uwer wijsheit van den 14 deser, toegesonden
 om den Coninc behoudende ^{made urgent request, verbally,} ~~verantwoord~~
 daer in de reyk of de angstich ship Grand luno
 ste onverschut scheppe de Vergulde Creest
 which one appears to ^{connect with} ~~binden~~ aan dese quicia
 diffus ~~dat niet sumary is met by velds~~
 Thans and meer possible effort dat to y Hoort's
 intercessionen so much might be gedepresent
 dat ook de one ~~not~~ & de other might be
 relas which I believe also would ^{rarely} ~~have~~
 followed if H. mayty had not been importuned ^{& begged}
 by dese die haar hier seggen tot gentement
 te sijn & geboden dat op'a matters should
 be referred by H. mayty totte Staats Collegia
 (het welck ^{which is the long way} de lange wech is): so dat in de ten
 days in which I have been at it, I have not,
 with all ^{my} efforts, been able to effect anything

Slit
 =

Two cheer on either side, with if it took Cheived
 And do so States College have done one hundred sat
 & will not give a canoe in it water.

[DRC]

Letter from Kennebec to St Paul.

"Elis: de 4 April 1662 xle war."

[89 5914].

"d 4. x. 16 April 1662"

2 leg 2 encs

Ho His Huen

leue Huen / I have reported to y^e His Huen in y^e letter
 of 25 March last what I met with in this King dome ^{by y^e right}
~~of 25 March last~~ ^{where I met with} ~~and reported~~ ^{of y^e ship} ~~to y^e His Huen~~
 about de ~~to~~ ^{ships} ~~to~~ ^{placed on} ~~the~~ ^{of the ship} ~~the~~ ^{Keef Huen}
 for a England & Kennebec Petition, which was do
 at King's house such a paper remembrance
 to his State College & now where this advice
 turned their ^{disposition} ~~disposition~~ on the side of sd ship
 according to its ^{besting} ~~besting~~ And as
 was ~~besting~~ ^{since} I could not know where
 the said College would meet on Parliament
 at sd walling I departed again to Bremen on
 26th having the ^{most important} ~~most important~~ documents in prob.
 with ~~me~~ ^{deducting} ~~deducting~~ i. de lands of de
 Chancellor to be had of sd College.

from His Majesty } The same day of y^e departure from Copenhagen
 was sent to me by an express rider the report of
~~is~~ ^{from} ~~an~~ ^{from} ~~express~~ ^{from} ~~the~~ ^{from} ~~report~~ ^{from} ~~of~~
 bricht van Klingbergen, ^{Ann solio cum socio}
~~with~~ ^{with} ~~some~~ ^{some} ~~documents~~ ^{documents} ~~the~~ ^{the} ~~King's Acte~~ ^{King's Acte}
 for the sd Kingly ~~in~~ ⁱⁿ ~~the~~ ^{the} ~~same~~ ^{same} ~~day~~ ^{day} ~~the~~ ^{the} ~~same~~ ^{same} ~~day~~ ^{day}

in reply to
1st ~~and~~ ^{second} memo, copy dated ^{was} sent to H. H. H.
on 11 Feb. But as ^{Act 1} ^{said} ^{again} the 1st Act of the 1st word
of the ship of the memo. ~~which~~ ^{was} memo was
delivered in
regiment & again contained the same words of the memo

King's reply sent to H. H. H. on the 28 Feb. ^{usually} ^{well} ^{founded} ^{was} ^{not}

Chapman's reply to my ^{was} ^{not} ^{delivered} ⁱⁿ ^{regiment}
which is an expression inclining to approval of what

the 1st ^{beginning} ^{was} ^{not} ^{delivered} ⁱⁿ ^{regiment} ^{was} ^{not} ^{delivered} ⁱⁿ ^{regiment}

had ^{beginning} ^{was} ^{not} ^{delivered} ⁱⁿ ^{regiment} ^{was} ^{not} ^{delivered} ⁱⁿ ^{regiment} ^{was} ^{not} ^{delivered} ⁱⁿ ^{regiment}

had ^{beginning} ^{was} ^{not} ^{delivered} ⁱⁿ ^{regiment} ^{was} ^{not} ^{delivered} ⁱⁿ ^{regiment} ^{was} ^{not} ^{delivered} ⁱⁿ ^{regiment}

so often offered, has been seen or read. I have ^{for}

the reasons of it — also because ^{at least} ^{it is} ^{not} ^{delivered} ⁱⁿ ^{regiment}

it was intended & the thing ^{was} ^{not} ^{delivered} ⁱⁿ ^{regiment} ^{was} ^{not} ^{delivered} ⁱⁿ ^{regiment}

& now of the King — ^{returned} ^{to} ^{the} ^{Chancellor} ^{requesting} ^{him} ^{to} ^{be} ^{corrected}

& ^{so} ^{the} ^{King} ^{is} ^{not} ^{delivered} ⁱⁿ ^{regiment} ^{was} ^{not} ^{delivered} ⁱⁿ ^{regiment}

to H. H. H. ^{And} ^{as} ^{the} ^{King} ^{is} ^{not} ^{delivered} ⁱⁿ ^{regiment} ^{was} ^{not} ^{delivered} ⁱⁿ ^{regiment}

that ^{the} ^{King} ^{is} ^{not} ^{delivered} ⁱⁿ ^{regiment} ^{was} ^{not} ^{delivered} ⁱⁿ ^{regiment}

had been very ^{drawn} ^{up} ⁱⁿ ^{regiment} ^{was} ^{not} ^{delivered} ⁱⁿ ^{regiment}

that I would ^{draw} ^{up} ⁱⁿ ^{regiment} ^{was} ^{not} ^{delivered} ⁱⁿ ^{regiment}

the ^{draw} ^{up} ⁱⁿ ^{regiment} ^{was} ^{not} ^{delivered} ⁱⁿ ^{regiment}

Incluse to the letter. Copie nuovo de laire
to the Blumark

"Copy

Received in the 15th April 1662

Received by ^{medley} ~~Endersby~~ ^{King}

Thoyt's resolution of the 12 March of this current
year with the accompany^g reply & documents from
Vincent Rungenborgen am socio (Hamburg
inhabits & residents) has come to the hands, the President
was add nothing else in reply to all their ^{base} ~~valsch~~
^{assertion} ~~points~~ ^{shameless} ~~particular~~ ^{impertinences} ~~on the occasion of~~ ^{than} ~~confidential~~ ^{to}
^{purports} ~~and~~ ^{affirms} ~~the~~ ^{deduced} ~~last~~ ^{in his} ~~intention~~ ^g
deducted in memorien ... And the President must
extremely complain that his past evidence
produced have not been fair & ed. let
on the contrary must see ^{from} ~~two~~ of the Kings'
^{instruments} ~~adieu~~ (before his documents ^{had been} ~~were~~ examined &
so unheard) that the reply of Vincent Rungenborge
& ^{Dr. Bae} ~~Del Bae~~ ^{are quite founded} ~~well~~ ^{as the same} ~~seems~~ ^{contain}
of Helsen nothing else than false points
only tend to disturb such good old allies
in their friendly correspondence & harmony.
Thoyt we please be assured that the President
in this matter has never had other "passe" than

[illegible]

[illegible]

insisted on having } Socio son 30 strongly passion in father understand until now has never been able to help him and other Clingenberger case Security for the ship Redarius is wagon hallen not being content with entering house with old has the two is chocky scanted from the two two ventures to assure which security to Residence dates assure of loyalty

and names of them the two who don't W.C. it's
J. May's vessels coming with Coast of
Guinea shall see just effect & utility
if the same vessels are let instituted
according to the ¹st resolution, and
do not go further in order to prevent
war stop ^{give} arms in the hands of the
barbarians contrary to all good policy
to destroy commerce ^{trade in} of the Coast
a to break the necks of the ^{Christians} & to rob
the ^{Christians} ~~from the Coast to break the~~
~~them of their lawful possessions~~
~~have lawful persons to commerce, like as~~
the old ships Frederick ^{as appears from} ~~was~~ ^{non} ~~has been done previously~~
~~Ringenburgs~~ ^{non} ~~has been done previously~~
~~left & to all appearance will do again~~
not least ^{to combine with} ~~with~~ ^{St Martin} ~~at ship~~
~~to plunder their two most subjects~~
~~as the ship~~ ~~of the two subjects~~
~~under~~ ~~ship St Martin~~ ~~is at present doing~~
~~under~~ ~~of May's~~ ~~Coast of Guinea~~
~~having~~ ~~not only captured~~
~~but not only taken~~ ~~the W.C.~~
2 facts " ^{French} ~~French~~ & " ^{Black} ~~Black~~
against will & reason, but ^{tried to} ~~tried to~~
and great cruelty ^{is still} ~~is still~~ ^{looking out} ~~looking out~~
do violence ~~between~~ ~~the~~
W.C. ships coming in ~~the~~

[illegible]

2nd Synchro to show, Cr -

[illegible]

[BNC] For. Picaud's longh bladed for 4 months
 plundering the adjacent lodges & making the
 Ausgesplündert the day whole lodges & made
 servants prisoners - as shown in annexures
 the servants previous, George Langlois. E. & F.
 ohne geschehen in qu stellen etc/wie
 no further cause for
 in aufgabe in in montand & weil leugungkeit."

Extrait du
 [Lettre du Le Maire de la Ville [89 5914].
 de "Als: de 5 September 1662"

"d 5. r 12 yhr 1662"

Ho wo Hau

by Kuen

At Glückstadt de Danish Glückstadt
 of our Comp, or to stock truly, its ^{Hamburg} Hamburg
 merchants with their customers are again
 equipping a ship to Guinea it is said that
 it will put in England & then due to
 Peter Jo Zeebrich & so done, or in
 Company with de Kiederich. If it is still
 there, or also under with English to report
 with of d Coast I have had

1662

The equipment was known to his way: [572]
 also a Commission a request. Let the
 also ship with the application: as in the
 present form of application which was
 sent to the court of the court to
 depart. Then: the manner of departure,
 the Commission for period in to us and send
 official with the set from authorities are present.

1895
 1896
 1897
 1898
 1899
 1900
 1901
 1902
 1903
 1904
 1905
 1906
 1907
 1908
 1909
 1910
 1911
 1912
 1913
 1914
 1915
 1916
 1917
 1918
 1919
 1920
 1921
 1922
 1923
 1924
 1925
 1926
 1927
 1928
 1929
 1930
 1931
 1932
 1933
 1934
 1935
 1936
 1937
 1938
 1939
 1940
 1941
 1942
 1943
 1944
 1945
 1946
 1947
 1948
 1949
 1950
 1951
 1952
 1953
 1954
 1955
 1956
 1957
 1958
 1959
 1960
 1961
 1962
 1963
 1964
 1965
 1966
 1967
 1968
 1969
 1970
 1971
 1972
 1973
 1974
 1975
 1976
 1977
 1978
 1979
 1980
 1981
 1982
 1983
 1984
 1985
 1986
 1987
 1988
 1989
 1990
 1991
 1992
 1993
 1994
 1995
 1996
 1997
 1998
 1999
 2000
 2001
 2002
 2003
 2004
 2005
 2006
 2007
 2008
 2009
 2010
 2011
 2012
 2013
 2014
 2015
 2016
 2017
 2018
 2019
 2020
 2021
 2022
 2023
 2024
 2025
 2026
 2027
 2028
 2029
 2030
 2031
 2032
 2033
 2034
 2035
 2036
 2037
 2038
 2039
 2040
 2041
 2042
 2043
 2044
 2045
 2046
 2047
 2048
 2049
 2050
 2051
 2052
 2053
 2054
 2055
 2056
 2057
 2058
 2059
 2060
 2061
 2062
 2063
 2064
 2065
 2066
 2067
 2068
 2069
 2070
 2071
 2072
 2073
 2074
 2075
 2076
 2077
 2078
 2079
 2080
 2081
 2082
 2083
 2084
 2085
 2086
 2087
 2088
 2089
 2090
 2091
 2092
 2093
 2094
 2095
 2096
 2097
 2098
 2099
 2100
 2101
 2102
 2103
 2104
 2105
 2106
 2107
 2108
 2109
 2110
 2111
 2112
 2113
 2114
 2115
 2116
 2117
 2118
 2119
 2120
 2121
 2122
 2123
 2124
 2125
 2126
 2127
 2128
 2129
 2130
 2131
 2132
 2133
 2134
 2135
 2136
 2137
 2138
 2139
 2140
 2141
 2142
 2143
 2144
 2145
 2146
 2147
 2148
 2149
 2150
 2151
 2152
 2153
 2154
 2155
 2156
 2157
 2158
 2159
 2160
 2161
 2162
 2163
 2164
 2165
 2166
 2167
 2168
 2169
 2170
 2171
 2172
 2173
 2174
 2175
 2176
 2177
 2178
 2179
 2180
 2181
 2182
 2183
 2184
 2185
 2186
 2187
 2188
 2189
 2190
 2191
 2192
 2193
 2194
 2195
 2196
 2197
 2198
 2199
 2200
 2201
 2202
 2203
 2204
 2205
 2206
 2207
 2208
 2209
 2210
 2211
 2212
 2213
 2214
 2215
 2216
 2217
 2218
 2219
 2220
 2221
 2222
 2223
 2224
 2225
 2226
 2227
 2228
 2229
 2230
 2231
 2232
 2233
 2234
 2235
 2236
 2237
 2238
 2239
 2240
 2241
 2242
 2243
 2244
 2245
 2246
 2247
 2248
 2249
 2250
 2251
 2252
 2253
 2254
 2255
 2256
 2257
 2258
 2259
 2260
 2261
 2262
 2263
 2264
 2265
 2266
 2267
 2268
 2269
 2270
 2271
 2272
 2273
 2274
 2275
 2276
 2277
 2278
 2279
 2280
 2281
 2282
 2283
 2284
 2285
 2286
 2287
 2288
 2289
 2290
 2291
 2292
 2293
 2294
 2295
 2296
 2297
 2298
 2299
 2300
 2301
 2302
 2303
 2304
 2305
 2306
 2307
 2308
 2309
 2310
 2311
 2312
 2313
 2314
 2315
 2316
 2317
 2318
 2319
 2320
 2321
 2322
 2323
 2324
 2325
 2326
 2327
 2328
 2329
 2330
 2331
 2332
 2333
 2334
 2335
 2336
 2337
 2338
 2339
 2340
 2341
 2342
 2343
 2344
 2345
 2346
 2347
 2348
 2349

"A 16.2 23 4th 1662"
— Another copy of his memorandum to the
King & Devereux - inserted in his last yet
it was after, the last long run to
Providence had his Epitaph. —
Quotum is also: —

Handwritten: "Lecture is also:—
"Growth of the Individual"
"Growth of the Individual"
"Growth of the Individual"

de Wansford Kennerden 17th Aug. 1899.

Handlung weitaus Ching hungen

[DAC]

equipped a certain ship named
 "Pruice" of Denmark is said to
 have the same to the C & J.
 And since the said ship is more
 laden with arms & munitions
 of war, than merchandise, &
 voor heeft denwaert van te gaan
 in company with the ship
 Fredericus at present lying in
 England and again to supply this
 the most rebel Jan Claes with
 a good quantity of arms & other
 munitions of war — contrary to
 all vollens recht & the
 opgerichte door ollanie between
 of Wajl & this the mo. —
 & is thierin slyven him in his
 onbehoorlycke rebellion & hostility:
 the Resident therefore requests in the
 the name of his Hoogwaerdige Lords
 Principals that if Wajl will be pleased
 to prevent the departure of the said
 ship, now lying ready to sail,
 indeed in any case not to allow

Let ships to appear on the said Coast
with of Voyages Commission or Ice Break &
many of Voyages flag is over so
~~for~~ particularly to knowledge of Voyages
faithful allies by on behalf of
assistance of their rebels & enemies. etc"

Lettre pour Monsieur de laune à Sten. [M 5914].
"Dated 8^e de 10 Oct 1662. sig. uuv."
"à 10 & 17 Oct 8^e 1662" Hs. Ols. Kunn

Copy. Kunn. / To my memorandum on the
equipment of the ship ^{Christianus} ~~Christians~~ or de
~~Prinse~~ of Denmark upon which we sent
to of Holten on 16th of last month, has
the King of Denmark let Voldorninge
been pleased to send me the accompanying
letters ^{from} de Officiar priores Chingborg
& Del Bœe merchants of Hamburgh,
with request that the said ship is
whenever we assistance of our for the
assistance & staying of of Holten etc's
rebels or enemies let us only go to

[DAC] the Govt of Guinea to send its trade
~~the~~ peaceful, our pleasure which
 Denmark has in visit & according to
 their statement boxes have departed
 from the ~~the~~ Elve about the time
 of the presenting of my memorial:
~~first delivery ... on 14 of the two~~
~~boxes which to present, since ... remain / 17 97~~
 J. Delmarie

Elv: the 10 October 1662 still wars

Inclosure to above [transcribed by the Dutch
 translation of the copy in German]

broederlijke hat wachte King
 Alan geachtste Kanc. —
 of His. previous letter of the 6 inst we
 have with our anxious reference well recd.
 & understood thereof that the Lord Sp.
 of the U. K. President has la Maire
 has delivered in 1671 Maj a memorial
 grant us, as if we had sent
 (of record) some things with annotation

[illegible]

[PAC]

the beginning their trade ^{ought nothing else} ~~hitherto~~ ^{and} ~~was~~ ^{is} ~~still~~ ^{being} ~~so~~
 with ~~that~~ ^{your} ~~greatest~~ ^{greatest} ~~and~~ ^{desire}
 absolute ~~with~~ ^{as} ~~doel~~ ^{than} ~~to~~ ^{carry on}
 free trade & ^{peacefully} ~~undisturbed~~ ^{by} ~~the~~ ^{value}
 of ~~the~~ ^{ways} ~~proceeding~~ ^{granted} ~~charter~~
~~granted~~ ^{of} ~~without~~ ^{giving} ~~the~~
 best ~~office~~ ^{that} ~~to~~ ^{settle} ~~life~~ ^{as}
 they also ~~allow~~ ^{have} ~~schepen~~
 not ~~for~~ ^{danger} ~~near~~ ^{kept} ~~ingebonden~~
~~that~~ ^{if} ~~the~~ ^{same} ~~might~~ ^{remain}
 unmolested ^{by} ~~the~~ ^{WTC} ^{as} ~~the~~
 contrary is ~~deed~~ ^{allowance} ~~is~~ ^{bestowed}
 about which the Danish King
 has had to supplicate ~~the~~ ^{ways} ~~so~~ ^{many} ~~times~~
 So it can never be proved that the
 Danish King has held any correspondence
 with the ~~States~~ ^{rebel} ~~in~~ ^{Guinea}
 and less that ~~his~~ ^{the} ~~themselves~~ ^{have} ~~gesticht~~ ^{supported}
~~the~~ ^{same} ~~with~~ ^{ammunition} ~~&~~ ^{arms},
 but that ~~the~~ ^{ways} ~~Command~~ ^{the}
 is living in ~~neighborly~~ ^{peace} ~~with~~
 the ~~King's~~ ^{places} ~~of~~ ^{that} ~~Country~~
 like as ^{reasonable} ~~such~~ ^{far} ~~distant~~ ^{offensive}
 places ~~and~~ ^{be} ~~believed~~ ^{which} ~~but~~ ^{cannot}

used be called ^{any} ^{support} ^{rebels.} ~~stigma~~ of the ~~world~~.
but better wij y King list eller on ~~undersat~~
refly, into, ~~as~~ ^{willen} ^{Toe} ^{oasen}, again you
^{pray} ^{long} ^{for} ^{the} ^{name} ^{of} ^{the} ^{so} ^{D.C.} ~~that~~
he will be pleased to ^{assist} ~~protect~~ the same
that it obtain proper ^{satisfaction} for the WTC
therefore is left on ^{untroubled} ~~behaviour~~ to the same.
Y^hu. de. re. Y^hu. ^{most} ^{humble} ^{rewards}
Vancie Klingenberg.
Jacob See Boe ~~(S)~~

Glickstadt 16 September 1662

[89 5914]

to the King of Denmark.
the 20 Januy 1662.

West India Comp

Ship East Luno.

We in no way doubt that
Y^huaj will have been able
suffice to ^{deduce} ^{double} ~~affirm~~ ~~remember~~
how what has been represented by
our Resident de laire in the
justification of the actions of our
biz: on the Cof. S. Africa,
Paspar van Hemessen which he
may have committed against
the BHC, so that we will refer

[DRC]

Home Office

Baroness

sharply certain. But as
 Mr Pitt-Rivers Pitt-Rivers Pitt Rivers
 of the 15th century in
England has ^{undertaken} ~~subscribed~~

London, without awaiting our
 despatch, to take into arrest
 there on a certain ship
 of the 15th of his country
 named Grady Quo with its
 cargo, & for the purpose
 of ^{exceeding} ~~exceeding~~ great damage
 "over people's heads & interest"
 of the same City

which it is contrary to all
 prescribed laws of nations
 Voltaire & the French laws

the law is clearly
 allied to the ^{harass} ~~harass~~ ^{harass}
 seek to ~~maintain~~ ^{maintain} each
 other and process

in another Kingdom, & finally
~~since we already threatened~~
~~safe Remedy & dangerous~~
~~between well known examination~~

since we are talking of
 trouble & have agreed to
 have the a just examination
 made into matters.

[illegible]

[SAC]

[18 5914]

To the President of the United States
 at 21 March 1662

West India Company.
 Proceedings of the Board
 on the C of Africa
 Ship Reef Runo.

[X] profit or loss on
 the file.]

1/4 States

What we write to the King
 of Denmark is favour of
 the Directors of the WIC.
 Of these lands you will
 be able to learn from the
 accompanying copy of the
 principal letter^(X), which, as
 also the cameroon ducts,
 we have found good
 to send to the Governor
 with copies over & command
 that you will have to
 record & from our
 good meaning intention
 of the 10 King, & the Duke
 a Court, by way, so that
 the desired effects may
 be better carried out
 ducts supplying all
 the necessary de notation
 otherwise without it any

way remaining i gebrek as we
consider these matters very serious
& are much concerned i them
Actum 21st March 1662.

To the King of Denmark.
— May 1662

A long draft for R. S. G. touching
of Denmark protesting against seizure of
(roasts) (i. restitution of) ship ^{Vergulde} ~~Vergulde~~
Hoeft, in Bergen which the King
could not resolve to release before it B. H.
^{Satisfaction} ~~for~~ from WTC (a seizure of
their de solist ^{contend} — a matter into which,
the S. G. contend, the ship Vergulde Hoeft
has not been taken —

[SPK]

to her Res^d de laire to Stat^s of Holland
St^d Holland

[Holl: 2/94]

^{Prat}
 Edel ~~the~~ Hoogende Keeren
 Honble Great Mighty Lords

Wise Keeren / ~~the~~ Since up till now all ~~the~~
 my ingedide memorien over the
 African disturbances by the King had
 uitgewerkte working in parl^r, soo
 I have, ~~the~~ int wel nemen of J Post
 Leo., good gedacht, op het fundament
 van haar Ho^o Ho^o trefsonden letter of
 25th March last, to go & speak totte
 King verbally in his ^{"cabinet"} cabinet to
 unroole fully to this way what had
 happened both in Africa & England as
 also to hand over over the ~~the~~ letter.

The King admitted me to this
 audience last ^{Wed.} wed^d, in the presence of
 the ~~Chancellor~~ ^{H^o of the} H^o of the Chancellor,
 Treasurer, & ^{"Rent-meester"} ~~Rent-meester~~ Gabel, & with
 great politeness hand related ^{what} to
 int bespich, all sort of which, ^{to} I had
 to my knowledge,

Knowledge, had been done on the Coast of
Africa by his ^{so-called} ~~slave~~ subjects, whom
verschiedene dolancien, stying with so many
amicably opposite opinions sold Verbruyden
gefordert hebben, & dinge, i.e. w. that the
his letter requested a prompt restitution of the
of the ^{captured} ~~slave~~ & also two ~~seized~~ ^{seized} ships
with interdiction to Just Gaurer & all others
to desist from hostile acts in the future,
with "refuse" van Schode & interesse that
their the two W.C. has daily suffered, &
more that their the two would have to
order to protect their W.C. against such a
and like violence with their ^{authority} ~~power~~. The
King was pleased to say ^{in reply} ~~to~~ that he
had requested their the two by letter to ^{all} ~~take~~
the other differences be settled by
Arbitrators to be named. He desired to have
their the two reply as he judged this
^{remedy} ~~remedy~~ ^{take} the best for the removal
of the other evil. I replied to his that I had
not yet said their the two commands about
this. He I said and say so much for myself
to the King, that his matter was not intrude

Various accusations "de la part" of the
de la part of the French Commission with others that
the de la part of the French Commission should be
the French Commission over the exhibited documents.
The French Commission requested that the French Commission
the same when they were under a short address on the
the French Commission should be given to the French Commission
which I did the next day. Today I was
again with the President of the French Commission
have requested the French Commission on the French Commission
letter of 21st March last & my verbal
proposition, who replied to me that they had
not yet made full report to him. He told me that
unavoidable I could well assure him that he
that the report will be well prepared by the French
Commission & so resolved herein, that the French Commission
the French Commission would be satisfied: only requested
that they would not take it amiss if the French
Commission would deliberate for 3 or 4 days before giving his
final reply.

I cannot remember the time when the
of delay is taken a new assembly will be
to see what our two will be pleased to
resolve upon the requested arbitrators will

[BHC] we have intente sijde, de entire dispute
 would dear becom wyfken (?) without
 separately o previously intenc to
 dispenen op de arrestation of the
 arrested stogelovende ship in England,
 also de gewalde ships on de Guinea
 Coast I shall with full powers with
 all zeal tot de ships resolution, which
 undoubtedly ~~undoubtedly~~ has already been taken on the
 matter ^{transmitted} ~~transmitted~~ ~~transmitted~~ to me
 & as to how it is of the best kind.
 And which is it.

J L Waine

Copenhagen. the 13 Aug 1662 ~~1662~~

Sag hert hogerse Heer.
 My. Kaver. / I am Power of the 13d inst.
 I inform of E & G. how I myself wrote
 Our letters of 21 March last to the
 King, before the King as also afterwards
 before the apled Couners
 On Wednesday I went again to
 Frederiksberg where I was given by the King's

1662

[BAC]

it was furnished with the welcome of their
 the first day to the most noble the
 following ~~to~~ (to) Count Rantzau the

[Schersted]

Heaven Zerstadt Zerstadt (as first
 Ministers of the King) both are the
 most despatch & the shocking words in
 the of the reg. — on both subjects which
 subjects he made representations to the
 Ministers —

1663.

[SAC]

Letters from President J. Le Mouë (Copy to) to:-

a) States of Holland and Zealand. [Holl. 2494]

Edel Prins Frederik Høyer.
 Høyer Høyer / The Chancellor of Denmark &
 Norway has acquainted me in the name of the
 King with the displeasure that the King
 has for the African affairs, ^{that has been expressed} by means of good
 men or in neutral judges, ^{to which} the King
 African visitors (so the Chancellor said to me)
 has shown themselves displeased. Therefore requested me
 in the King's name to hinder them from
 the fact of removal of all their business &
^{particulars} ^{consequent} ^{consequence} of generalisation
 between Dutch ^{relation} ^{neutral} the African affairs with
 the King's ^{arbitration} — . . .

[Jan 20?]

1663.

[BNC].

M^r Kem - /

Sail Paul Long Kem.

Last Sunday the Swedish Admiral Hendrick
 Perritsen, now named Zeehelm, came into the
 roads here with a Swedish warship mounted
 with about 40 guns & a fleet with ten or
 twenty more to come to Elencur was he,
 as Skipper of the W.C. had carried me to
 Brasil: he from 1642 in order to receive
 the visit given. I tried to know all of him
 where he was going he had only he had
 he he prepared to trade on the Coast of America
 which is difficult to believe. He has left the Coast of
 Brasil and will sail to

Ello 20 Octob 1663

J Le Maire

Ed P^rmooy Kem.

Lors. / The Swedish Admiral Hendrick

Perritsen is still lying before Santos with
 with his two ships. One says here that the
 having verbaan de restitution which de Blocks
 of Fungia had done with the last W.C.
 of the Forties Cabo Corso (where one
 judges that he would have several
 been been, men & victuals) would await

best masts from Sweden. It has been the most
aboard 3 weeks. Said when winter we had to work
and stay longer than 5-6 days, ...

Es de 3 Mars 1663.

J de laune

Sach Ernstwergende Kun
ken. Last Sunday it being very high and the Prince
his eldest son, twice the damage had done which the
last overboard & high water had done to the Castle
Cronenborch. ... Every day one hour less work &
more of damage & oneluckten which was caused
by the old hard weather: Six of de Schoone
Coast that ten standard vessels have been
counted. The ship of the Swedish Admiral
Hendrick Perntzen is so far so far off shore
genereten that it has water the it water falling,
it was of driving it. & must be kept
with 3 continuances of ropes or otherwise with
ball or by side of it with water. And the
Blocks of Guinea have restored Cabo Corso
to the other bothas W.C. so that deanoor
by the Swedish Swedes gesinden Soudainge

1663

geadvanceert een als of de English
 (die door mede een logis gelod hebben)
 de Sweeden de hand sonder bieden
 te confereren teverwonen de of de fort met
 geweld rike ofid Admiraal (possing
 England) sonder English ships - In his
 reinforcement sonder by gewacht of
 warden

Als: d. 10 Januarij 1663. J. de Moune

Jaak Pothmoguse Heeren.

My. Heeren. / Ik fuisse Admiraal
 Hendrik Perrotz. Jaakelun who mit his
 ship op het rif van Huort geseten &
 door een jacht verhooren heeft las finally
 come into Pottenburg anchor & towards
 where he has afgedancet [afgedommet?]
 his men & laid up his ship on the
 belevies dat dit las een dome both because
 his ships by crumps against a ground bed
 because both, & because (his ship was in
 (his ship was in) hij door mede

has lost a great part of his virtuals, ammunition
of war ~~this~~ ^{was} part of his cargo left ~~at~~ ^{was}
one ~~was~~ has not been able to penetrate certainly
where the Admiral originally wanted to be
he has some opesvische merchandise & some
troops that his intention was to be to
the coast of Guinea to drive trade there &
not to come to Anconen de Port Coto
Coto which on his departure for Sweden
(as we did not know otherwise) was still
in this ^{land} ~~part~~ ^{disasters}. It is said that ~~he~~ ^{ending}
has so many ~~disasters~~ & accidents as often
other has been pleased to put behind his designs
~~for distant~~ ^{for distant} ~~was~~ ^{was} ~~disaster~~. And which or or
I do know
It is 15 December 1663.

b) To the General [Sg. 2414].

20 Oct. 3 Nov. to Nov. 15 Dec. date of his
of same known as above as Admiral Scriver. Feb. 1664
copy

1664.

[BAC]

Letter from King Fred^{III} dated "Copenhagen
the 15th December 1663" 1081 9m."d. 15. 10th 1663""2. 9 ^{February} ~~January~~ [2nd 1664] 1664"

in "Notebook. Aitzema I. II"

[The above letter has been fully noted in L
~~Aitzema I. vide p 26 of the Notebook.~~]Chronus to 24.

[99 5915]

"Jettum d 3 April 1664"

No 100 1000

Oltho de wansquod Resident of 1st of
 Denmark Norway to take back 1000
 100. wansquod have been pleased on his two
 conciliatory Memorials ^{delivered in} ~~ingested~~ taken the
 19th [1664] & 29th [1664] February
 request them made on behalf of his Majesty
 for the restoration of the good correspondence
 with his Majesty the undisturbed course
 of Commerce of his Majesty's chartered

[Type script]

Africai say as the free Court of Penna ^{until} ~~but~~
^{the matter has mutually settled in principle}
~~de de Sacke~~ ~~the jurisdiction~~ ~~standing~~ ~~ed~~
 cannot be given & of good. for the last
 understand wellers that not the last thing the
 been done about it because the of the laws
 has been sent to the W.C. John had not yet
^{delivered in}
 informed their advice, the first reported Council
 with well, in flangers was about. The President
 of the requests that the W.C. was the heavily ^{administered} ~~advised~~,
 those are also in the substituted in the flangers place
 so that have expected in the found ^{in there so long delayed} ~~in there~~
^{matter}
~~so that~~ ~~gettlement~~ ~~matter~~ ~~of the~~, & especially
 resolution taken, which will report, meantime
 remain. H. /s/ P. B. B. B.
 Range of 3 April
 1664,

a from Lincen to same effect sent by Charles on 18 April 1664
 "Medium 15 April 1664

J. de la Harpe's Memo "ingested 28 July 1664" in de la Harpe
 title 54. & "Schulden" Medium de 8 Aug 1664" in [54 5915]
 has been noted in Notizena Little book p 30.
 [de la Harpe returned to Penna on 1 Aug 1664]

1664

[~~1664~~]

de maie [Copenhagen] to & "Griffins" Ruysch (?)
 de maie to ~~de maie~~ - [59 5915].
 (Griffins?).

RAC.

Jaels Sorteringen deur

"d. 1. r. 8. gler 1664"

Sir. / In my last I wrote y^t that
 that the Soul of Carlisle had come to this
 landing here Sweden, but as I have
 understood from the Swedish Tollbooth this
 was promised him & many more &
 under other like words.

He also Swedish has here, - i order to justify
 his Intention faithfully hidden ^{committed} against ours
 on the Coast of Africa & to ^{stellen} stellen y^t the
 laws of the country are as aggressive, -
 onstandig verhoelt. And the Swedish
 W.C. de Maieen sortende onder het
 gebied van de Carastreekte in het welke
 the English Fort Conventum is situated,
 sonder geschandteit of have ongetroffen [dan]
 so have wants gold in ajide deselve
 d'Engelse Voors fort niet alleen
 sonder ofhandig maken het also verjagen

[DRC]

crusing in the Channel, in order to
attack our [the] fleet going
to Tobago and by the canal some
cannon of the Zeylen.

It will be unnecessary of Ed Esdr. Vande Linden
to deduce why the ofd statement
of the English Envoy has more or less
behaved as before given were, for their
[the] long the officers, ^{one} here would
not be bound to preserve any secrets
with the beholders ~~can~~ in accordance with
the policy made in that end.

with which it is not

Oppen. de 1 November 1664

J de Wille

1664.

[395915]

To the King of Denmark
 Norway etc the 13 February
 1664. —

D. A. C.
 &
 WTC of these
 of these lands.

~~State.
 [The reference to the
 Kings letter the last
 in Netherlands summary
 of it. But this is
 quite different from the
 enclosed in the letter.]~~

For Majty is written
 in Copenhagen the 15th Dec last still
 concerning the ^{pending} ~~dispute~~ ^{differs}
 between these of the WTC of these lands.
 & those of the Danish Affr Co. has
 been since by us kept with verbal
 recommendations Van den ^{contents thereof} ~~inhanden~~
^{handed over} ~~King~~ ^{as presented by the well-borne}
^{Comptroller of State & a State} ~~of Majty's~~ ^{and Treasurer}
^{President of the "de Collegie"} ~~of the~~ ^{of the}
 President of the "de Collegie" of
 Assessor in Collegie Statius den
 Heer Hannibal Zehe Zehestett [Schout
 .. Knight ~~of the~~ ^{of the}]
 And we have now today found
 good reason ^{apply} ~~to~~ ⁱⁿ
 that we, ^{no} ~~are~~ ^{less} than Majty
 are with our whole heart & ^{mind} ~~and~~ ^{giveness}
 with ~~disposed~~ & ~~therefore~~ ^{very}
 with only the of it but also all
 other ^{differs} ^{understandings}
 which ^{are pending} ~~is~~ ^{between} Majty & the

1664.

[1572]

Shot

8/16 9 ^{either sides} under 4/5

~~involuntary~~ amicably
~~to be kept~~ to remember
appear in paper & to
on paper & fair to

contribute everything that
is to be free ^{course} ~~cause~~ of Commerce

both Indian & Chinese people
could in any way reasonably
~~congruents~~ - ~~belong~~ ~~does~~

could be ^{desired} ~~desired~~ from us. And

To the ^{Insurance} ~~Letter~~ ^{Practice} ~~of~~ ^{authorities} ~~we have~~ ^{howe} ~~defused~~ ^{authorised}

Counts from the middle of our

Quercus - oaks, on the

of a subject with de of a

der Hamburger Zehestadt 9

A Resident Charities

~~conference & handling letter~~

broken, not doubling that very soon
 have out of this ^{water} ~~water~~ ^{very soon} ~~very soon~~
 its desired effect & ^{accommodation} ~~accommodation~~

True satisfaction of both Civil sides

we follow, so that we are
confident that it will work

Canary to request a

to enter into
Conference &
negotiation,

Confess the jurisdiction of other Kings
Republics Potentates and the
- with a view of friendship - same &
On the 14th of Feb 1664

[89. 5915].

King of Denmark
31. 10th 1664

RAC.

most sincere & (have been)
y. King ^{will} undoubtedly both
from common sense & the information
given for by our Ambassador de Waire,
how the King of the Britains &
His subjects have begun to treat
the State and good inhabitants
thereof with hostile attacks &
open ^{open} hostility. First in the
^{distant} regions of Heligoland by the
^{capture} seizure of towns, countries,
ports & ships, & afterwards also
within Europe, ^{capturing} ^{bringing up} ~~seize~~ &
oppressing ^{bringing up} all ships belonging
either Country without that it
can be alleged on the side of

1664

[DRC]

England, or ever has been
^{represented} voorgesteld, doe - since the
 conclusion of the last made
 treaty, which mortificient or
 equalizes all previous differences
 & claims - any of their ships
 have been ^{feitelyk} attacked,
 damaged, captured or ruined by
 our inhabitants, much less any
 within Islands Ports or
 Towns occupied or ^{vermeester};
 & altho' ^{we} we, ter soeken der
 op de hostile expressions van
 England, al ons langen tyt,
 bewogen sijn geweest, naar
 t' volken recht om te
 recht ^{verdragen} ommy defence of
 our subjects & subjects, intsgodens
 te reparatie of the damage
 suffered & offension, & English
 wederom by retorie all possible
 offrent te doen, especially
 of the King of England
 has ^{bepleegd} to declare, to our

to deminieren

4

Linnerton in England that this longly
 had himself given name for the
 incorporation of the Netherlands, for
 the argument of Cato's Corps
 (so as the same was also has been
 pleased to make the like
 decisions w. it. the common
 men or obligations of the op
 ships within Europe) being
 hostile to the maintenance of laws
 touching places towards the op
 thing, had not the best right in
 the world. Let ^{men} never had made an
 claim taken ^{up}, against the State
 war. so venturers were, (venturers
 into) (journals with regard to
 the Netherlands) seems likewise to
 so King has been imagined,
 believe that the work such
 imagined could of future as
 wise as older than the year 1654,
 would be justified by the last
 made treaty. Therefore we have
 believed up till now (in the hope

1664

[BAC]

of a peaceful int. (house to
 system libelous) restrained
 from all offensive ~~action~~
 action against the King
 of Gr. Britani this subject,
 op dat alleent bolven des
 te clauder de rechtvaardigheid
 of our matter i deren
 blycken wage And as
 from all de quess and of thought
 de sees clearly before your
 eyes de instruit standing
 our resolution & togerende
 manner, respects i everything
 o surryshve sufficed, the
 hostile actions & ~~public~~ open
 hostility from de side of
 England, and only without de also
 within England, Europe against
 this state & de good interests
 thereof. by de capture of their
 ships on de high seas, de
 plundering & confiscation of de
 same i de harbours of de

af te brengen, en onder wezen, we laten stouwen
 en ten alle to ledich staan
 en effectiverolij ^{bevestig} te verset f leagty
~~laan~~ dat deshe als an van
 sye syde gelime te posten
 alle tynt by de voorgaande
 allianse betwien f leagty &
 dis Stote is opprecht & getyptent
 & diinsolgens door de belode
 heroren (die wy onsefbaarlik
 van hwe wags (over be roonde
 justie generenssejt & Royal
 trouwe te gemoet sien) te helpen
 af te offweeren alle onheylen &
 ongelijck wile dese H. N. alle suljets
 stouf by de English & Europe alliant
 alliant congeden is & still fwr
 inge te congeden, of wile an of d
 heriant wile fwr onenborden ~~ver~~ Verbal
 f wagt int fwr permission, towil we
 refer ^{alliant} wile wile inducting wy may
 tot ~~blig~~ / hert hane & /
 In de Hoge de 31st December 1664.

40.

1664

[~~SAC~~]

de laire to [de Witt?]

[Holl: 2797]

RAC

Harry Sade Fehungen Haar.

Sir

I have now seen the two tremendous
Secret resolutions of the 3rd inst. had such
 Audience with the King of Denmark &
 Norway & made to bring a complete
 release & release of all the disputes & disputes
 between the State of the U. S. & the Crown
 of England their pertinently pointing out
 to this way the iniquitous & unjust
 political action which the English nation are
 doing against their the two subjects

[vide note in Aufjema note book p 31]

Copenhagen 20th Decr 1664

so de laire.

[note the enclosed copy of memo dated 17 Decr 1664.
 and dated 18th Decr 1664 after a great number
 of letters in "Africa America & Europe"
 retaining assistance under treaty made in 1669,
 which treaty because is long been attacked in
Europe]

promised
under

1665

[BAC]

On 20 January 1665, de Waane [Holl 2494] ✓
 writes from Copenhagen to the States of Holland
 (Soel Broederschap vanden) that he has not yet been able to get
 - into the - that he has not yet been able to get
 copies of his memo ingredient on 17/4 December last -

Letter is a letter dated Copenhagen, the [ibid]
 9th May 1665. to the States of Holland
 de Waane writes (inter alia):

The Danish African Company heeft een schrift
 is druck gegeven*, more than 12 Vellen great
 & dat, opziet twee Ed. Prins: WTC is
 which many things vinnich & onverschut

It is a directed "remonstrante wyse"
 I have drawn given on the Ed. Prins [1664]
 an Exemplar te mogen toe zenden at
 have not yet been able to obtain any because
 he wants the thing first before it
 is divulged here, evenwel omdat het tot
 Hamburg gedrukt is althoek it is said to

* Vide Photo stat
 of the pamphlet
 in which
 is printed in
 the Royal
 Library
 Copenhagen.
 printed in
 Hamburg
 1664

[DAC]

have been done at Flushing Meadows
 Bericht werde geen druckes te worden
 I have written to Resident Hoover
 to send of to each copy of it
 was to be the - but which is.

1914 and

1915

1916

1917

1918

1919

1920

1921

1922

1923

1924

1925

1926

1927

1928

1929

1930

1931

1932

1933

1934

1914 and 1915

1916 and 1917

1918 and 1919

1920 and 1921

1922 and 1923

1924 and 1925

1926 and 1927

1928 and 1929

1930 and 1931

1932 and 1933

1934 and 1935

1936 and 1937

1938 and 1939

1940 and 1941

1942 and 1943

1944 and 1945

1946 and 1947

1948 and 1949

1950 and 1951

1952 and 1953

1954 and 1955

1665

[DAC]

89 (from Denmark) 5915.

Letter from J P Baron van Riede van Amersfoort

Extra Mini: to Denmark from 89. [1st to Oct].

Letter to Copperloger 5/15 May 1665. Reports his arrival there
inognito on 13 May this reception & the King & his
bishop both Sunday "this afternoon"

Letter to J P Baron van Riede van Amersfoort 9/19 May 1665 and copy of his
memoirs towards taking of Denmark at audience - a/working
assistance & war with England by virtue of submitting treaties
of alliance — [and a/ Africa to find: the Hs]

[Amersfoort had wind clock & thermometer by 7 hours which
is date of his last to on 17/18 Feb].

Letter from Pierre de la Roche to the King [Buffin 89, 9] [1665]

"at 21 Jan"

rec 10 Feb 1665 "

Sade Perseus de la Roche.

Sir

The day before [ie the day before "last Sunday" ie last Sat]

To this
in the same & in which I replied that the old
matters were of a different nature & not the least
comparisons would be made between them
and in fact as usual comparative London
gebruiken ^{werden} ^{for} ^{disputes} ^{between} ^{two}
two cases & sovereign nations about
which arbitrators ^{for a compromise} ^{appointed} ^{Verkeers} ^{of} ^{gestelt} ^{for} ^{the} ^{other} ^{or} ^{either}
which was ~~above~~ concerned ^{who by the means of} ^{some of this Majesty's} ^{Ministers} ^{van eenige} ^{van} ^{hooggedachte} ^{Majesty's} ^{Ministers}
meer hooggedachte Maj ^{absolutely} ^{had} ^{strongly} ^{persuaded} ^{them} ^{into} ^a ^{Charter} ^{abusevelijk} ^{ladder} ^{and} ^{of} ^{to} ^{proten}
a charter which the ^{erst} ^{thought} ^{would}
kerde in de ^{oprichting} ^{of} ^{an} ^{Asiatic} ^{Bank} ^{who} ^{had} ^{sold} ^{it} ^{for} ^a ^{good}
Coij ^{was} ^{ladder} ^{betwixt} ^{van}
sum of money to one
de goede somme penningen, sold to
one Jan Swaen ⁱⁿ ^{London}
of Amsterdam, who had ^{established} ^{the}
of Coij in Holland & on ^{in order to give} ^{some}
een, uit landsche ^{baan} ^{te} ^{geken} ^{eenig}
Directors ^{Directors} ^{at} ^{Hamburg} ^{to} ^{contrary to}
Hamburg ^{gestelt} ^{which} ^{was} ^{strijde}
uit various ^{of} ^{proceeds} ^{van} ^{the} ^{to} ^{the}
& also to the ^{granted to} ^{Charter} ^{of} ^{the} ^{WTC}

[57C]

So that ^(such) ~~submits~~ ^{states} their / its wo's Coy ^{submitting}
~~in hindering the traffickers in their improper~~
~~business~~ ^{in their own} ~~unbecomingly~~
~~Commons~~ ^{where they were doing} ~~what was in conformity~~
~~with their acquired right~~ ~~and~~ ~~and~~
~~that~~ ~~that~~ ~~that~~ ~~and~~ ~~also~~ ~~in~~ ~~fact~~
~~has~~ ~~disregard~~ ~~right~~, which could
~~with~~ ~~be~~ ~~brought~~ ~~before~~ ~~Arbitrators~~, as
~~being~~ ~~a~~ ~~transgression~~ ^{carried on} ~~by~~ ~~their~~ ~~own~~
~~subjects~~, ~~to~~ ~~prove~~ ~~all~~ ~~true~~ ~~&~~ ~~genuineness~~
~~in~~ ~~that~~ ~~case~~ ~~of~~ ~~fact~~, ~~and~~ ~~so~~ ~~that~~ ~~they~~
~~by~~ ~~this~~ ~~ways~~ ~~subjects~~ ~~so~~ ~~that~~ ~~they~~
~~must~~ ~~be~~ ~~furnished~~ ~~according~~ ~~to~~ ~~the~~ ~~tenor~~
~~of~~ ~~the~~ ~~said~~ ~~proceeds~~
~~and~~ ~~they~~ ~~could~~ ~~not~~ ~~come~~ ~~to~~ ~~order~~
~~with~~ ~~their~~ ~~Supreme~~ ~~authority~~ ~~against~~ ~~whom~~ ~~they~~ ~~had~~
~~acted~~ ~~their~~ ~~strong~~ ~~over~~ ~~sight~~, ~~against~~
~~whom~~ ~~they~~ ~~had~~ ~~good~~ ~~men~~,
~~whom~~ ~~they~~ ~~had~~ ~~good~~ ~~men~~,
~~good~~ ~~men~~ ~~and~~ ~~women~~ ~~and~~ ~~the~~ ~~legally~~
~~appeared~~ ~~half~~ ~~sitting~~ ~~to~~ ~~accept~~ ~~this~~ ~~statement~~
~~seen~~ ~~del~~ ~~given~~ ~~was~~ ~~both~~ ~~and~~
~~the~~ ~~willen~~ ~~men~~: ~~wherefore~~ ~~I~~
~~request~~ ~~the~~ ~~ways~~ ~~to~~ ~~be~~ ~~willing~~
~~to~~ ~~suppose~~ ~~whether~~ ~~as~~ ~~proven~~
~~in~~ ~~conformity~~ ~~with~~ ~~the~~
~~Black~~ ~~stock~~ ~~Company~~ ~~had~~ ~~granted~~ ~~by~~ ~~the~~ ~~Black~~ ~~stock~~
~~with~~ ~~granted~~ ~~by~~ ~~the~~ ~~Black~~ ~~stock~~
~~of~~ ~~price~~ ~~was~~, ~~a~~ ~~lot~~ ~~participants~~
~~for~~ ~~the~~ ~~same~~ ~~therein~~: ~~and~~ ~~I~~ ~~could~~
~~not~~ ~~of~~ ~~amuse~~ ~~this~~ ~~ways~~ ~~before~~ ~~hand~~ ~~but~~ ~~he~~

[illegible]

friendship and the way to the way
 decomp ^{een} een goet gewalle sonde nemen.
 If ~~the~~ ^{the} two are pleased to
 put any one here it will be necessary
 that he way ^{authorized} by qualified ^{to dispose} to ^{regulating}
^{of what is stated above} of the three standing. For one can see, -
^{since so much work is made about} uodevoal ^{so} veel ^{work} van
 Cobo Corso gewooght ^{is} ^{the}
^{position} ^{one talks} ^{of great} ^{things to} ^{dealing about it}
^{men} ^{den} ^{Concluck} ^{dear} ^{grade}
 dugie van voor ^{pract} ^{pract} [pract]
^{of which seeks to} ^{seekt} ^{conceal}
^{of learning} ^{to} ^{bedocken}
^{of} ^{de} ^{single} ^{artificien} ^{artificien} ^{which}
^{some of his} ^{ministers} ^{with} ^{werk} ^{gellige}
 hebben ^{for} ^{the} ^{con} ^{profid}.

RAC.

Beyningen ^{the} ^{harangue} ^{which} ^{was} ^{van}
^{Beyningen} ^{Beyningen} ^{made} ⁱⁿ ^{France},
^{the} ^{work} ^{part} ^{of} ^{which} ^I ^{has} ^{been}
^{have} ^{communicated} ^{to} ^{the} ^{way}
^{has} ^{been} ^{sent} ^{here} ⁱⁿ ^{print} ^{and} ^{to} ^{read}
^{to} ^{the} ^{way} ^{from} ^{Holland}, ^{who} ^{said}
^{has} ^{told} ^{me} ^{that} ^{he} ^{had} ^{read} ^{it}
^{with} ^{attention} ^{of} ^{opening} ^{and} ^{was} ^{gladly} ^{see}
^{what} ^{the} ^{English} ^{would} ^{be} ^{able} ^{to} ^{answer}

To Mr.

...

last word

re re

Copenhagen the 24 Januy 1665.

J de Maure

Respect de Maure to Ski En

[195915].

"d. y. n. 18 April 1665"

Ho Tho Kuen

Leque Kuen / ...

From Ho Tho Kuen. Good & come to my RAC.

lands of the two resolutions of the 16th
March to present the "Manifest" of war
which the King of Great Britain has had
published on the 4th of the same
month. The two resolutions brought
made both lands the same, a generous noble
letter would be sent to the King which I
have not need & therefore requested an
answer with his Majesty in order to explain
verbally to him the intention of the two
^{contained} words in the of a Resolution - meaning

has been captured taken from his subjects
in E or W Indies; he also had some ships
in this storm in Africa but been kept
out of places ^{besieged} by them; the loss
subjects which ~~is~~ ^{according to a law} over a great number

which was ~~practised~~ practised by all Kings & Princes, &
 by the English themselves; so that yr. H^o m^os subjects making
 use of this right, they could not understand that they
 had changed the English nation or any other but
 the same nation that was always the
 English, or any other any one, were well do.

for the sake of peace, others an
indulgent goodness
conspicuous for their
so this to make their subjects give
satisfaction of compensation their
subjects that they may be so

shoud give satisfaction & make uspading

Op het ^{Absorbe}senden van Vice Admiral
de Vriesman hier wordt de King Lewis toewel
toe bespreken het op 10.10. en afgevoerd

Aggression ^{an abuse} Have my friend of all the
bondage & side wrong & wrongs

Costs: of Notes received; Receipts for the
Pending Drawings; Memoranda & other

$\rho \bar{\rho} s$

[~~244~~]

successively sent home & so, coming to
 the last Article of the open manifest, being
~~the same~~ that of which I have seen open
 resolution speaks, which I have
 compared on standelyk this so largely
 to on vragoglyckheyt & resistance of the
 geprecede that & how this may
 not geschiedende been een niet wiede
 later stellen tot vromer throughlyckheyt
 of his subjects total hindrance &
 ruin of the Commerce: as for employed
 all Bodenkelyke reasons of persuasion
 to instigate this the King then to caution
 with again against it. The King
 having heard me replied that he would
 dole speak with George Talbot on it
 & my tale to let him know what he
 should mean when he had him desired:
 that he well saw that if this was practiced
 it ^{Commerce} would sufficiently have to that still
 can & goods not used & was? What while/ye, or
 I he knows

Copenhagen 4 of April 1665

end of 1665 88 5915.

Massien England

1645-47

1648-50.

Stet Gen. Massien England 6912.

mil

[59 Mass Eng 6910]

1648 47.

h Note from Strickland to S. de la Haye June
24 (?) 1647. Exhibition 25 July 1647.
referring due to our affairs of St. Thomas' with to
present the President of the Company of the
English Merchant of France for receiving
their debts due.

1651-1653.

Stet Gen. Mass Eng 6913.

mil.

1654.

Stet Gen. Mass Eng 6914:-

Drift letter S. to introduce 99 of last letter: to find
our the military & Royal: the Comander of ships & Regies
the Director: the Comander. the Comander in
Guinea and: —

1654

The Commanders on the
Coast of Sumrie.

15 May 1654.

to His Highness

From which England.

For send for herewith some Copies of
the Treaty of Peace, Union & Confederation
made & concluded on the 15 April last
between Westminster between the said
Commanders of the said Protector of the
Republic of England Scotland & Ireland
and his Highness the said His Highness
of the State on the other of which
mutual satisfaction is further from were
exchanged on the 2nd of the month
may also be published ^{clausure} in this country
on the 2nd inst: which Copies
we have found good to send for herewith
with last observed ^{made} for will
have to choose such other Bishops &
from the said Treaty of Peace Union
& Confederation so far as it concerns
for our country with the view of the
publication. Likewise some herewith.

is good bill already
to be from our country

rather the same (also obtained red tide) & for
of all the who are flood / can be fair
canward (or in still & flood)
it being useless in intelligence &
desire not for me (up & down the
kept of the Garrison's robes ^{on} the ships
was from ground good order &
careful watch in order that all
inconveniences be prevented
with which concluding. Oct 15 1657

1657-1658

John Doeke. England. 6916.

1657-

In London. Amsterdam. Newport
Westminster 23 Feb 1657 we receive
of 2 small ships of 4 English ships
on the coast of France about Cape Van
does Forbaker. — from correspondence
thereon with called

1661-1663. 89. (Hanni England) 6918.

1661.

Relatium de 14 iohes

1661.

"Catalogue & Account of the Injuries
suffered since sustained by the
Subjects of His Majesty of Great Brittain
from the Subjects of the 89 of the U. N.
as follows.

Losses sustained
in Guinea.

By 4 ships called the Lyon, Providence/
de Roppe Hamack, de Sarah & de Fortune,
having traded since good advantage upon
the Coast of Guinea in a hostile manner suffered
in the months of Aug & Septemb 1656.
by two Dutch ships de Mary & de Lemorne
sent out from Amsterdam on a sailing voyage
by John Commaus & Manellis van der Groot
Subjects of the U. N. under the Command of
John Sraael of Amsterdam.

The Lyon Insurance being of the value of	£ 22,190.
The Pappa Steamship of	10,190
The Sarah of	11,900
Other Portents of	<u>4453. 15</u>
all amounting to	52,033. 15

which appears by a report of the Judge of the Admiralty.

Besides for 5 years interest at 6 per cento

And for charges in prosecution

The total of these claims is

15 609. 17. 11

600

68, 243. 12. 11

89. (Martin England) 69181669.
(27 Sept)The ^{undersigned} ~~undersigned~~ Envoy Extraordinary of his most
Sacred Majesty of Great Brittain &c. hath since

his coming from London, by the post received orders to make
known to their Lord^{ships} ye ^{Extraordinary} ~~Extraordinary~~ of ye U.P. that certain English ship called ye
Charles whereof one William Crawford was Commander, & one other English ship
called ye James whereof one Peter Harrett was Commander, both belonging unto the Coy
of Royal Adventurers of England Trading to Africa, sailing upon the Coast of Guinea
to trade for gold, negroes & other lawfull manumises were interdicted all trade & commerce
in the parts to which they were assigned, & in which their Cargo was proper, under
ye notion & pretence that the W.I. Comp^y of this Countrey were in warre with ye
inhabitants of those Countreys wher their Ships upon their Coasts, & ^{pursuant} ~~pursuant~~ therunto
were actually ^{hindered} ~~hindered~~ by force from their sd trade by ships belonging to ye sd W.I. Comp^y
sent to follow ye sd James & Charles from place to place ^{wherever} ~~wherever~~ they sailed,
who keeping their boats with armed men night & day ^{twice} ~~twice~~ ye there & ye
sd ships, did surprize all such Kenoes of ye Natives as came for ye
shore, to trade with them and hindered them from sending their goods
on ~~shore~~ ^{shore} shore, particularly did upon ye 6th day of November: 1662
surprize ye ship Charles for boate going on shore with severall goods
to Capo Corso to pay for a request that were there contracted for, & detained
both men, boate & goods: Moreover did upon ye 11th day of November 1662
surprize a ^{Kenoe} ~~Kenoe~~ belonging to ye sd ships & ye ^{mariners} ~~mariners~~ were therein, together
with a quantity of gold at ye Nauera, to the prejudice of ye sd Comp^y to ye

[illegible]

larger satisfaction was made for 3 English ships viz. the Portillum, &c
Federick, & Francis which had been taken by the ships of the E-1-Comp^y
 of this Country for trading at Bantam, and the being whereof the sd Comp^y
 were then in Saare, had their ships then riding before the sd place, to block it up,
 (as they were pleased to turne it).

And as regard to what hath been done against these ships hath been done
 by the direction of one Dick Wilree who states himselfe Governor's Quill of the Coast
 of Africa for this State & for the West India Comp^y by them established, & who
 pretended to be what he did by order, (as appears by a copy hereunto
 annexed of the instrumentation, sent by him to the Commanders of the sd ships). The sd
 Survey Extraord^r is commanded to demand of their Lord^{ps} whether the sd Dick
 had any such order, & if not that he be exemplarily by them ^{chastised} ~~chastised~~, & such a
 Resolution or declaration by them taken, & given to him the sd Survey Extraord^r
 whereby his Ma^{ty} may rest assured in himselfe that his Subjects shall not be
 upon such pretences ^{hindered} ~~hindered~~, & damaged by the E- or W-1-Comp^y of this Country
 for the future, vntill unless such chastisement shall be inflicted upon the sd Dicks,
 & such Resolution or Declaration speedily be delivered to him the sd Survey Extraord^r; his
 Ma^{ty} will take it for granted that his Subjects are not to expect better treatment in
 these parts, & will take such ^{course} ~~course~~ as he shall in his great wisdome think expedient
 in a matter so highly concerning his Subjects welfare. Moreover
 the sd Survey Extraord^r: doth remind their Lord^{ps} of his last humorsell, & desires that
 they will be pleased to expedite their answer therunto. Given
 at the Hague this ^(sic) of September 1663.
 [The French translation of the above is
 indorsed "Lectum den 27. ybr 1663" (sqd) G Brouning

[Checked with copy in Stat. Sec. Letter War England 81. 2]

Section 18 Oct 1663. The States General of the United Netherlands having examined & considered the Memorial from Mr Downing, Extra Envoy of the King of Great Britain — containing complaints that a certain English ship named Charles, captain of which was William Crawford, & another English ship named James, the commander of which was one Peter Maret, both belonging to the Co of Royal Adventurers of England Trading in Africa, on coming to the Coast of Guinea to trade in gold, negroes & other merchandise, had been forbidden any sort of trade at the places to which those goods were consigned or destined & at which their cargoes were suitable to be disposed of; & this, under the pretext that the W.I.C. of this country was at war with the inhabitants of those regions — have, after deliberation, found good to reply to the Envoy extraordinary that orders have never been given, on the Coast of Guinea, by their High Mightinesses, nor by the W.I.C., nor will be given, so, to treat the allies of this State in general & the English nation in particular, that thereby the mutual alliance should be prejudiced in any manner. This clearly appears in the declaration in the Insinuation made by the provisional Director General Wilgze to the ships Charles & James (also sent in by the Envoy Extraordinary, & although the Memorial appears to wish to shew the contrary, this Ex^{ty} will be able to learn the truth from the following:—

That nothing was done by the servants of the Co. particularly those on the Coast of Guinea, about the ships Charles & James which is contrary to the laws of nations or to what necessity allows to each & all, for although it is true that on those ships coming to the Coast of Guinea, the Co's ships prevented them trading at some places, namely Comary & Cabo Corso, but at no others, & it cannot be said that wrong was done to them, as the Co had sufficient & well founded reasons for it because it is now more than three years ago when the people of the Fetu country, incited by foreign nations, displayed hostility against

against the Co & drove them [Co] out of their possession of Cabo Corso. Afterwards the people of Comany also became involved in the same war & attacked the Co's trading place & situated in Comany & having set fire to it, killed several of the Co's servants.

Thereupon in order to obtain satisfaction for everything the W.I.C. at very great cost, laid siege to the aforementioned places with ships & kept them blockaded until at last the Co was again placed in its former ^{possession} ~~possession~~ & the Co is still keeping that of Comany blockaded to the same end. And besides the port of of the country of Comany, called Aketeke & the place Ampeni, where the Co. has a lodge - there are no means of access into that country in order to drive trade. Likewise also, besides Cabo Corso & the Co's other ports, no entry to the Kingdom of Fetu is open. Therefore it was with good right that upon those English ships coming there they were not allowed to trade at those blockaded places but neither they nor any other English ships were prevented from calling at ~~other~~ any other places off the Kingdom of Fetu or of the country of Comany. [sic. But what other places were there?].

Likewise, also their High Mightinesses wish to declare that they will by no means protect any one who might have kept off any English ships from harbours or places of other Kingdoms or countries which have not been effectively blockaded, but on the contrary, upon such being justified they would take proper steps against him.

Am

In this case such supervision was exercised as to endeavour, in all friendships & without any offensive words, to ~~dis~~ dissuade them, & when, upon the protest being made those ships abused the WIC & its servants as traitors they were still treated with such courtesy that when they tried to land by force their sloops & canoes were stopped & sent back without a mit mite of their goods being detained. It cannot therefore be sustained that goods to the value of £10,000 sterling had been taken out of their sloops & canoes.

Now, can the reasons alleged by Mr Downing come into the least consideration namely; firstly that this was a contravention of the Treaty lately entered in which there was no stipulation that if one of the allies was at war with a third party the other ally should not trade with that party. Against this it must be considered that although it is true, that the English are impowered to trade with nations with whom this State is at war, this cannot be applied to any places which, as in this case, are being kept specifically blockaded: just as this State the inhabitants of this State trade are trading with the Portuguese who are at war with Spain, — according to His Excellency's Memorial — but not at places which are blockaded. This distinction has always been observed from older times.

Coming now The example of the ships Postillon & Frederick, of which the East Indian Co made ~~restitution~~ restitution, does not apply to the present case, for here nothing was taken from the English which the Envoys Exley states was done by the East Indian Co, & therefore nothing. And as, from all that is stated above, it clearly appears that nothing was done by or on behalf of the WIC with regard to the ships

Charles

Charles & James which caused any offence, much less any damage, to the English (who were warned more than ten times not to ~~call~~ ~~touch~~ ~~at~~ ~~those~~ ~~places~~, their High Mightinesses trust that the Envoy Extra will be satisfied, & report favourably to.

the King of Gr Britain upon this ^{their} High Mightinesses reply & sincere declaration which is ^{entirely} in accordance with the truth; & also that, from that ^{his} side, similar unfounded claims ^{will} ~~shall~~ not be henceforth be brought forward.

Done at the Assembly of the States General in the Hague the 18 Oct. 1663.
